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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Prerana Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prerana Hospital Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the inforrnation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“ACt”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025,
and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur respansibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditer's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
rmade thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

+ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report but does not include the
financiat statements and our auditor's report thereon.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

+ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia! misstatement

of this other information, we are requirad to report that fact. We have nething to report in this
regard,
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also include
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and appiication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve callusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act,
we are also responsibie for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statemnents represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicabie, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those boaoks,

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025
taken an record by the Board of Birectors, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

I} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectivenass of such controls, refer 5 our
separate Report in "“Annexure A". Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.,
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g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directars during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derjvative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

v, {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beljef,
other than as disclosed in the note 39 (f) to the financial statements, no funds
{which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign  entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like ¢n behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 39 {g) to the financial statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in aggregate} have been received by
the Company frem any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us te believe that the representations under sub-clause (1) and (ii) of
Rute 11{e), as provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,

V. The Company has nct declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
propesed final dividend for the year,
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31
March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.0080723)

/&

Ankjt Daga

Partner

{Membership No, 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPU9743)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 16 May 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Prerana
Hospital Limited (the *Company”) as at 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial contreis with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements eriteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reperting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
cantrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to abtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such centrols operated effectively in al}
material respects.

Our audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controis with reference to financial statements inciuded obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a matenial weakness exists, and testing and evailuating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiai
statements, whether due to fraud or error.,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financiai control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference ta financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internai financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial staterments established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.008072S)

Ir

Ankit Daga

Partner

{Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPLI9743)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 16 May 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normai course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets,

(b} The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment so to
cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 2 years, which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were
due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) Based on the examination aof the registered sale deed provided to us, we report
that, the title deeds of ail the immovable properties of land and building disclosed
in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.,

{d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The inventaries were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when
compared with books of account,

(D) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, during the
year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,
As per the terms of the sanction letter, the Company is not required te file quarterly
returns or statements with the banks or financial institution,

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of foans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting
under clause {iii)(a), (iii)(c), (in(d), (iii)(e) and (iin)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has made investments in a Limited Liability Partnership during the year, in
respect of which:

(b) The investrments made during the year, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.
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{iv)

v)

(vi)

{wvii)

{viii}

()

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable,

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence reporting under clause {v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has heen specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of healthcare services rendered. We
have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by it
with the appropriate authorities, As explained to us by the Management, there were no
dues payable in respect of Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise and Value Added Tax
during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable,

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2025, on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Forum where Period to Amount Amounts
Statute Dues Dispute is which the Involved remaining
Pending Amount (INRin unpaid
Relates Lakhs} ({INR in
(Financial Lakhs)
Year)
Goods and = Goods and  Assistant 2021-22 35.36 35.36

commissioner
of state tax

Services Services Tax

Taxl 2017

There were no transactions retating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1661)
during the vear,

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defauited in the repayment of lcans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority,
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{x)

{xi)

{xii)

(xiii}

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii)

{c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds
raised an short-term basis have, on prima facie, not been used for long-term
purposes by the Cormpany.

(e} The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities {(including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As presented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} of the Order is
not applicable.

In our epinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(h) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period upto 31 March 2025 and the final of the internal audit
reports issued after the balance sheet date covering the period 1 April 2024 to 31
March 2025 for the period under audit.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary and associate companies or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause {xvi}{a}, (b) and (¢} of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d} of the Order is not applicable.

The Cempany has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
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{xix)

(xx)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, wiil get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act, Accordingly, reporting under
clause (xx) of the Crder is not applicable for the year,.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.008072S)

N%

Partner
{Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPU9743)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 16 May 2025
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

CIN - USSt10PN1996PLC104292

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

Ali amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Mote As af As at
—_— 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Fropeity, plant and equipment 4 10,535.89 16,603.16
Other intangible assets 5 12.37 10.96
Financial assets
Bivestinents [ 45,60 0.10
Other financial assets 10 95841 120.72
income tax assets (net) 28 473.02 716.97
Other non-current assets 11 113.55 146,22
Toral non-current assets 12,138.84 11,598.13
Current assets
Inventories 7 215.69 176.88
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 764.03 687.40
Cash and cash equivalents 9 672.43 543.30
Other financial assets 10 188.59 12242
Other current assets 69.08 37.86
Total current assets 1,909.82 1,567.86
Total assels 14,048.66 13,165.99
Equity and habilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 413.97 41397
Other equity 13 7.785.95 6,150.87
Total Equity 8,199.92 6,564.84
Liabilities
Non-current liabililies
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 234973 2,859.4¢6
Deferred wax liabilities (net) 28 1,043,03 88252
Total non-current liabilities 3,392.76 3,741.98
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
Botrowings 14 652,43 1.155.49
Trade payables 15
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small eaterprises 36.06 39,98
- Total autstanding dues of ereditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,238.37 1,118.66
Other financial liabilities 15 472,59 488.59
Other current liabilities 17 56.53 56.45
Total current liabilities 2,455,98 2,859.17
14,048.66 13.165.99

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
Jfor Deloitie Masking & Sefls
Chartered Accountants

Firmn registration mnnber: 0080728

N

/
AnkinDnga
Partner
Membership No.: 512486
Bengalury
Date: 16 May 2025

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Diectors of
PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

Dr. Ulhas Bhalchandra Damate Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navare

Managing Director Whaole-tume Direcior
DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Kofhapur Kolhagur

Date; 16 May 2025, A QD S8 2 Date: 16 May 2025




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

CIN - USS5110PN199SPLCI04292

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
Alt amounts 1n INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particoiars Mote For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 18 14,505.17 12,056.03
Other income 19 123.60 15926
Total income 14,628.77 12,21529
Expenses
Purchases of medicines and medical consumables 20 2,900.07 2,368.13
Changes 1 inventories 21 {35.46) {64.32)
Professional fees 10 corsultant doctors 22 310638 2,371.68
Laboratory outsourcing charges 13 42524 75696
Employee benefits expense 24 251395 2,133.50
Finance cosi 25 34391 412.83
Depreciation and amortisation 16 48592 438,11
Other expenses 27 2,645 95 3,367.44
Total expenses 12,387,06 10,80433
Profit bedfare tax 2,241.71 1,410,96
Tax expense
Current 1ax 441.01 1.92
Deferred tax 161 89 199.47
Tutul 1ay exnense 602,81 201.34
Profit for dhe year 1,638,%0 1,209.62
Other comprekensive income
Lrems that will wot be reclassified subsequently to profi or losy
Remeasurement of net defined benefit hab.hty (53.10) (1.97)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 28 1.28 Q.50
Total other comprehensive incare for the yenr (3.82) {1.47)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,635.08 1,208,15
Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 30
Basic iIn INR) 3959 2922
Diluted ¢In INR) 35.59 2922

The accomyunying potes fom un mtegral part of these financial statements

As per onr report of even date attached
Jor Deloitte Yiaskins & Sclls
Chanered Accountants

Finn regisprauen number: 2080728

PRERAN

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Cirectors of
HOSPLI AL LIMITED

Dr. Uliaas Bhalchandra Bamale Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navare

Partner Mairaging Dirvector Whale-time Director
Merbership No.: 5124§6 DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Bengaluru Kolhapur Kolhapur

Date: 16 May 2625 Dute: 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2025




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

CIN - U85110PN1996PLC104292

Statement of cash fows for the yenr ended 31 March 2025
All amounts an INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year befare tax

Adpusiments for

Deprecration and amorhisation EXpenses

Firance costs

Interest income

Allowances for credit losses on financial assets

Gain on sale/ disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Movements in Working capital

Changes in trade receivables

Changes in inventories

Changes in other financial assets and other assets

Changes in trade payables

Changes in provisions

Changes in other financial liabilities and other liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities

Taxes paid, net of refund received

Net cash generated from operating activities {A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Movement in other bank balances and restricted deposits
Interest received

Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment
Investment in Limited Liability Partnerships

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash genearted front/(used in) investing activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activitics

Finance cost paid

Long term secured loans availed

Long term secured loans repaid

Current borrowings (repasd)favailed, net

Net ¢ash used in financing activities (&)

Net (decrease}/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 9)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

2,2d1.71 1,410.96
485.02 458.11
3459] 412.83
(48 57) (116.63)

1.00 g
0.40 .

3,025.47 2,165.27
(77.64) (311.04)
{38.31) (46.48)
(54.28) (79 74)
11579 179 11
(13.28) (16.98)

20.48 (116.t2)
2,986.73 1,774.02
{19797y 506.73
2,789.66 2,280.75
(837.48) {1086)
533 113.64
(407.07) (1,160.86)
(45.50) -
5.92 -
(1,277.80) (1,048.28)
(35087 {427.38)
153.25 695.26
(1,185.11) (1,009 47)
- {10.26)
(1,382,73) (751.85)
129.12 48062
543.30 62.68
672.43 543.30

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivaleats contprises of ;

a) Cash on hand 14.85 588
b} Bzlance with banks 657.47 526.45
¢) Cash /Cheques- in transit 0.11 1097
Totai 672.43 543.30
Changes in Liabilitics arising from i ing activities for the year ended 31 March 2025
Particulars Asat Cash Cash Movement during the year As at

1 April 2024 inflows outflows Additions Finance Cost 31 March 2025
Borrowings (Current & Non current inctuding interest) 4,091 54 153,25 {1,535.98) 345.91 3,054.72
Total 4,091,54 153.25 (1,535.98) - 345.91 3,054,72
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars As at Cash Cash Trlovement during the year Asat

1 April 2023 inflows outflows Additigns Finance Cost 31 March 2024
Borrowings (Cuirent & Non current includir; Enterest) 4 430.56 685.00 (1,436.85) - 412.83 4,091.54
Total 4.430.56 5685.60 (1,436.85) - 412,83 4,091.54
Note : The above statement of audited cash flows has been prepared ur:der the 'Indirect method' as set gut in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financ.al statements
As per our rgport of even date attached Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
jor DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

r
L AT
g “‘-"/’,}_/_/

Partner

Membership No.: 512486..
Bengaluu

Date: 16 May 2025

Managing Director
DIN 00333654
Kothapur

Date: 16 May 2025

Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navare
Whole-time Director

DIN 00334421

Kothapur

Date: 16 May 2025
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes 1o the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, urless otherwise stated

1 Company overview
Prerana Hospital Lemited (“the Company’) 15 & public limsted company incorporated on 03 December 1996. The registered office of the Company 15 located at . § No 628,
‘B’ Ward, near Shastri Nagar KMT Workshop, Kethapur 416012 The Company 1s pnmarily inveived 1n the eperations of healthcare facilities n India. The Company 1s 2
subsidiary of Aster DM Heatthcare Limited (*the helding/parent company*)

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have beer prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {(“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
20135, as amended, and the relevant amended rules prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the 'Act), read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Beard of Directers on 16 May 2025,
Details of the Company’s material accounting policies are included in Note 3

2.2 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs and
ar¢ rounded off to twa decimals, unless otherwise stated.

1.3 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis except for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant
Ind AS:
(i} Cenain financial assets and liabilizes; and
(it) Net defined benefit (asset) |iability

2

kN

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, the management has made Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and tne reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual Tesults may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the Management on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recogmised prospectively.

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant sk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year ended 3t March 2025
15 included in the following notes:

-Nete 3.1,3.2, 4 and 5 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
-Note 3.10 and 28 - Recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of fiture taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;
- Note 3.6 and 29 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingenctes: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an cutfiow of resources,
- Note 3.16 and 32 - Leases;
- Note 3.5, 11 and 34 - Measurement of defined benefit oblipations; key actuarial assumptions;
- Note 3.4 and 36 - Impairment of financial assets,

2.5 Measurement of fair valucs
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-finencial assets and liabilities. The
Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of farr values, Fair values are categorised mto different levels in a fair valug higrarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Level | quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities;
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices mncluded in Level | that are observable for the asset or habality, either directly (1.€., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices},
ang
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an zsset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair vatue of an assel or
a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely 1 the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy al the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Financial instruments; and

- Fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

2.6, Going concern
As on March 31,2025 the company has a net current liability position. The paid-up share capital and the other equity of the Company as at 31 March 2025 are INR 413.97
lakhs and INR 7,785 95 lakhs respectively.

Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 is INR 1,638.90 lakhs and net cash inflow is INR 129,13 Jakhs. Management believes that the Company will be able to continue its
operations on a going concern basis and will meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foresesable future at least for the period of twelve months from the date
adoption of financial statements and based on business strategies and operaling plans which will enable the Company to generate operating cash fiows in the future.

The financial staternents have accordingly been prepared on going concerm basis

2.7. Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*"MCA™) notifics new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules as issued from
time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracls and amendments 1o Ind As |16 - Leases, relating to sale and lease
back transactions, applicable from Aprit 1, 2024, The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial statements
On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 2 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim 1o provide clearer guidance on
ing currency exch bility and estimating exchange rates when currencies are rot readily exchangeable The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or afler April |, 2025. The Company ts currently assessing the probable impact of these amendmenits on its financial statements.




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.

Material accounting policies

3.1 Property, plant and equipmeny

3.

5

L Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment tosses, if
any

Cost of an item of property, plant ang equipment Coemprises its purchase price, including mport duttes and nen-refindable purchase taxes, afler deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to s workng condition for 1ts miended use and estimated costs of dismantting and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it 1s located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of matenals and dircct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item
to working condition for sts intended use, and cstimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restonng the site on which it is located

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefui lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment.

Any gain of loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, cutstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under other non-current assets. The cost of
property, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use a1 each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

il. Subsequent expenditure and derccognition

Subsequent expenditure 13 capitalised only if it is probable that the future economig benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

An rem of property, plant and equipment 1s derecogmised upon dispoesal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected ta anse from the continuad use of the ssser The
gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iil. Depreciation

Deprecuation an property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets estimated by the Management Depreciation for
assets purchased / sold during a peried is propertionately charged. Leasehold improvements are amostized over the Jease term or useful lives of assets, whichever 15 lower
The estimated useful lives of items of praperty, plant and equipment for the curvent and comparati ve vears are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life (in years)
Buildings 60

Piant and equipment . 15

Medical equipment* 10-13

Motor Vehicles* 5
Computer equipment 3

Books 5
Furniture and fixtures * 5410
Electrical equipment 10

* For the above-mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on internat
assessment and supported by technical advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful Jives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-gnd and adjusted if appropriate.

Iutangible asscts

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated Iimpairment losses. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is
sncluded in depreciation and amortisation expenses in the statement of profil and loss. The estinated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reposting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful life of Computer sofiware is 3 years.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic
factors {such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the Jevel of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows
from the asset.

Subsequent expenditure 1s capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embedied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, Gawns or losses ansing from derecognition of an
ntangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are reeoginsed n the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised

3.3 inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition The Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of inventory consisting of medicines and medical consumables

and stores and spares.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs nesessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net
realisable values is made on an itern-by-item basis.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts m INR lakhs, untess otherwise stated

3.4 Impairment

3.5

i, Impairment of financial assets

The Company recogmses loss aliowances for expected credit Josses [ECL') on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired A financial asset is *credit impaired” when on¢ or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have oceurred.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to Iifetime ECL. The ¢xpected credit bosses on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.

En all cases, the i period idered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual peciod over which the Company 15 exposed 10 credit nisk
Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between

the cash flows due to the Company 1n accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects (o receive).

Presentation of allowance for expecied credit losses m the balance sheet:

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carying amount of a financial asset is wntten off (esther partially or in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that coutd generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

il. Impairment of non- financial assets
‘The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely mndependent of the cash nflows of cther assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CG U (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value n use is based an the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or
the asse),

intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i cueumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment ta be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the
assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.

An impairment Joss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amound
of the asset is increased 1o its zevised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortization or depreciation) had o impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Employee berefits

Sheri-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of feceiving employee serviees are classified as short-term emplayee benefits. These benefits include salaries and
wajges, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit abligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 15 provided A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably,

Post-emplayment benefits

Dgfined coniribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Govemnment adnunistered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by
employees.

Defined Benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-emptoyment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
by estimating the amount of fiture benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair vatue of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the catculation results in a polential
asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of économic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan (“the asset ceiling’). To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit lzability, which camprise actwarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income {OCI) in the peried in which
they occur. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in a
subsequent period. However, the Company transfers those amounts recogmised in cther comprehensive income within equity. The Company determines the nef interest
expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual peried 1o
the then-net defined benefit liability, taking inte account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and bensfit payments, Net
intesest expenss and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR takhs, unless atherwise stated

3.6 Provisions {other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
cutflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recagnised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the reporting date, taking intc account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material),

A contract 15 considered 1o be onerous when the expected 2conomic benefits to be derived by the Company from the cantract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meghing
its obligations under the contract, The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present valie of the lower of the expected cost of termenating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment boss on the assets associated with that contract.

3.7 Revenue
Revenue from contract with customers
The Company generates revenue from rendening of hospital services (hospital and medical services), revenue from sale of pharmacy and other operating inceme. Revenug
from Contracts with Customers {*Ind AS 115"}, establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised Under Ind AS
115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products or services. In calculating the variable considerations, the Company considers the nature and caverage through insurance and other parties, the
history of adjusiments and rejections, and the probabslity of rejections, disgounts, rebates, price concessiens, or other similar items.

Disaggregation of revenie

The Company disaggregates revenue from hospitat services (hospital and medical services), revenue of pharmacy and other operating income. The company firther
disaggregates revenue from hospital and medical services based on category of customers (cash and eredit) and based on nature of {reatment {In-patient and Qut-patient). The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and certainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market
and other economic factors.

Coniract balances

The Company classifies the right lo consideration in exchange for sale of services where invoice is raised as trade receivables, where invoice has rot been raised as unbiiled
revenue and advance consideration as advance from customers

Performance obligations and revenne recognition policies

Revenue 1s measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recogrses revenue when 1t transfers control over & good or service to
a customer 1.¢. al the transaction price when each performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when inpatient/outpatients has acualtly recetved the service except for
few services where the performance obligat:on is satisfied over a pertod of time. The following details provide information about the nature and timeng of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

(a) Revenue from hospital and medical services

The Company’s revenue from hospital and medical services comprises of ingome from hospital services.

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as tevenue when the relaled services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also
recognised in relation to the services rendered 1o the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of the services rendered.
Revenue is recopnised net of discounts, concessions given to the patients and estimated disallowances for patients covered under insurance.

Unbilled receivable represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services are rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance
sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.

{b) Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of pharmacy within the hospital premiscs is recognised when the conirol in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant ungertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods ané regarding its collection. The amount of revenue recognised is net of sales
returns, 1axes and duties, wherever applicable.

{c) Other operating income
The Company's revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of revenuse from medical courses conducted at the hospital. Revenue fiom services rendered is
based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is performed.

3.3 Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated mnto the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a forgign curcency are translated inte the funetional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a forcign cutrency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, Exchange
differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.9 Recognition of dividend i interest i or interest exy
a) Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established.
b) Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportionate methed, based on the transactional interest rates.
¢} Interest incame or expense is recogmsed using the effective interest method.
The “effective interest rate” 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or the amontised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset 1s not credit-impaired) or to the
amortised cost of the liability.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All ameunts in TINR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.10 Income tax

3

3.l

[X)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss except to the extent that it relates to zn itermn recopnised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income,

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax p yable or ble on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable n respect of
previous years. The amount of current 1ax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paxd or secetved after considering the uncertanty, i€ any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reperting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and
settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

A provision s fecogrised for those matters for which the tax determination 1s uncertamn but it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax
authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected $0 become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professsonals within
the Company supported by previous experience tn respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice,

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the cormesponding tax
bases used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be utilised. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a
history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax esset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there 1s convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable Tespectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax 15 measured at the lex rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 15 realised or the liability 15 settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax lisbilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes tevied by the same
tax authority on the same taxabie entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax lisbilities and assets on & net basis or their tax assels and liabilittes will
be realised simultaneously.

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Boreowings are recognised initially at fair valte, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 15 recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer setlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating 1o foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interist costs) ncurred in connection with the borrowing of furds. Borrowing, costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial pesiod of time 10 get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready for their mtended
use or sale, Other borrowing costs are recagnised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instrunients

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are onginated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initeally recognised when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initialty measured at fair value, except for trade recervables that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly atributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
ligbilitees at fair value through profit or toss - FYTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
secognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or {oss are recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

ii, Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, 2 financial asset is classified as either at amortised cost, fair value through profit or boss (FYTPL) or fair value through cther comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initiat recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business mode| for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions.

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractuat eash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prncipal and unterest on the prncipat amount outstanding,
On anitial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
OCI (designated as FYQC! - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not ¢lassified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at EVTPL. This includes all derivatve financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company may irevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC] as a1 FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assels: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model 1n which a financial asset is held a investment level because this best rgflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to manag, The inft ion constdered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such mvestments and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether Management’s strategy focuses on
earming contraclual interest income, maintaining a particular interest raze profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash cutflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;,

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed,

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sates and expectations about futurc sales activity.

Transfers of financiaf assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR kakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.12 Financial instruments {Continued)

3.1

-

Financial assets that ar held fos trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on & fair value basis are measured at FYTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contraciial cash flows are solely paymenits of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessmenl, “principal” 1s defined as the fair vabue of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Inferest” is defined as consideration for the time value
of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular pertod of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., iquidity
sk and admunistrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a comdractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flaws such that it would not meet this condition.
In meking this sssessment, the Company considers.

- cotmpent events that would change the ameunt or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the conractal coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features, and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).

Finacial assers: Subseguent measurement and gainy and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL These assels are subsequently measured at fair value, Met gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in statement profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognilion is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at FYOCL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
statement profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
invesiment. Other net gains and losses are recognised tn OCT and are not reclassified to statement of

profit and Yoss.

Financial iabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or 1t is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair valug and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Other financial liabilitics are subsequently measured at amostised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange pains and losses are
recogrised in statemnent of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or 1t transfers the nights to receive the contractual
cash flows in & transaction in which substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfecs nor
retains substantialiy all of the risks end rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset

1f the Company enters into transactions whesehy 1t transfers assets recopmsed on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised

Financial liabilities

‘The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are or d, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability
when its terrns are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished ang the new financial liability with madified terms is recognised in
statement of prefit and loss.

iv, OHfsetting

Financial assets and financial labilites are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
night to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

I el 1 Al

v. Derivative finandial instroments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent
to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in statement of prefit and loss,

Earunings { (Loss) per share
The basic earnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit f {loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equily shares cutstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the prefit/(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and
ather charges to expense or income {net of any atiributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic eamings per share and thé weighled average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential
equity shares that are dilutive, i.e, which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potertially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits/reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.




FRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

3.14 Cash-flow statement
Cash flows ace reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company arc segrepated.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposils with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value,

3.16 Leases
The Company has clected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, to short-term leases of al| assets that have a Icase term of 12 months or less. The lease payments

associated with these lcases are recognized as an expensc on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

3.17 Segment reporting
Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108™} establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers, Based on the "management approach” as defined in Tnd AS 108, Operating segments are to be
reported in a manncr consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM avaluates the Company's performance and
atlocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole uperating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Seevices”.

3.18 Operating cycle
The operating cycke is the time between the acquisition of asscts for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products / activities of
the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash cquivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

5 Other intangible assets

Particulars Compuier
Software

Gross carrying vaiue

Balance as at 1 April 2023 117.72
Additions 3.07
Balance as at 31 March 2024 120.79
Balance as at 1 April 2024 120.79
Additions 6.73
Balance as at 31 March 2025 127.52

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 91.28
Amortisation for the year 18.55
Balance as at 31 March 2024 109.83
Balance as at 1 April 2024 109.83
Amortisation for the year 5.32
Balance as at 31 March 2025 115.15
Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2025 12.37
As at 31 March 2024 10.96
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

6 Investments

Particuiars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Mon-current investments, unguoted
Investments in equity instruments of companies (at cost)

Janata Sahakari Bank Limited, Pune 0.10 0.10

1,000 {3t March 2024: 1,000) equity shares of INR 10 ecach

Investmenis in Limited Liability Partnerships (FYTPL)

Shri Sai Renew Venture Assets 1 LLP 4550 -

Total 45.60 0L.10

Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 45.60 0.10
7 Inventories

Particulirs As ag Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(Yatued ai iawer of cost and net realisable value)

Medicines and medical consurnables 181.84 146,38
Stores and spares 33.85 30.50
_Total 215.69 176.58
For details of nventoties pledged, refer Note 14,

8 Trade receivables
Particulars As at Asat

8.1

3.2

3 I_Marcllﬁ)_i‘:s__

31 March 2024

Current {Unsecured)
Considered good- unsecured 799.92 T42.18
Less: Loss allowance (35.39) (54.78)
Net trade reccivables 764.03 687.46
For details of trade reccivalles pledged, refer Noie 14.
The Company's exposiire to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 36,
Trade receivabies ameing scheduie
Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Undisputed trade receivables- considered good. unseenred

Outstanding for following perinds from due daie of payment

Not due 509.90 440,94
Less than 6 months 25756 245.26
& months - ! year 20.32 24.68
1-2 years 778 18.30
2-3 years 3.87 5.75
Mere than 3 years 0.49 7.25
Tatal 759,92 742.18
Logs allovance provision matrix- default raws applied at each reporting date
Particars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lue daie to ] vear 2%-25% 4% - 13%

1-2 years
More than 2 yeers

59% - 100%
_100% - 100%

55% - 100%
100% - 100%

8.3 Movement of loss allowanee

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 154.78) L100.58)
Add: Provision of loss allowance created during the year (1.00} -
Less. Bad debts writien oft durir.g the ycar 19.89 45.80
Balance at the end of the year 3780 (54.78)




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Ali amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

9

10

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Balances with banks

-Cn current accounts 657.47 526.45
Cash on hand 14.85 5.88
Cash-in-transit / cheques in hand 0.11 10.97
Total 672,43 543.30
Other financial assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Fixed deposits*

Rent and other deposits
Total

Current

Unsecured, considered good

Unbilled receivables®

Dues from related parties (refer Note 35)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks
Total

Total

“Net of advances from patients of [NR 53.97 lacs (as at 31 march 2024: INR 70.47 lakhs)

908.25 70.76
50.16 45.96
95841 120.72
115.10 91.72
27.26 2771
46.23 2.99
188.5% 122,42
1,147.00 243.14

*The above fixed deposits to the extent of INR 7.88 as at 31 March 2025 (INR 7.88 as at 31 March 2024) are maintained against guarantees issued

by Banks and are resiricted for periods exceeding 12 months as at the Balance Sheet date.

Otler assets

Particulars

As af
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Noa-current

Prepaid expenses

Advances for capital goods

Net defined benefit asset - Gratuity (refer Note 34)
Total

Current

Prepaid expenses

Balance with statutory / government authorities
Advance for supply of goods and services
Total

Total

GHARTERED |
ACCOUNTANTS

- 0.07
96.42 137.20
17.13 3.95

113.55 146.22
43.93 23.31
.60 0.89
24.55 13.66
69.08 37.86
182.63 184.08
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

14 Borrowings

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non-current

Secured - af amortised cost

Term loans from bank 2,349.73 2,859.46

Total 2,349.73 2,859.46

Curvent

Secured - at amortised cost

Current maturities of fong term borrowings 652.43 1,155.49

Total 632.43 1.155.49

Total 3,002.16 41014.95

Inforemztion about the Company's £xposure to interest rate and liquidity risk:

Secured bank loans

s are included in Note 36.

Particulars

Details of loan
as on 31st March 2025

Nature of Security

Charge vegistration details with MCA*

Signing date of MOE/Loan
agreentent

Actual Charge regisivation date

HDFC Bank Term lean 1

Loan ofs » 125.92 lakhs

(31 March 2024 : INR 57112
Takbs)

Interest Rate - 8.4%
Repayment terms- 19 quarterly
nstallments

The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on
immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all
current and movable fixed assets, both present and
Future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcars
Limited, the holding company.

Date of Loan - 27 April 2021

Charge date - 12 October 2020

MOE date - 7 May 2021

Charge date - 7 May 2021

HDFC Bank Term loan 2

Loan ofs = 31.12 lakhs {31
March 2024 : INR 141.14
fakhs)

Interest Rate - 8.4%
Repayment - 19 quarterly
instaliments

The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on
immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all
current and movable fixed assets, both present and
future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare
Limited, the holding cempany.

Date of Loan - 27 April 2021

Charge date - ]2 October 2020

MOE date - 7 May 2021

Charge date - 7 May 2021

HOFC Bank Term loan 3

Loan ofs - 57.15 lakhs (31
March 2024 : INR 259.19
lakhs)

Interest Rate - 8.4%
Repayment - 19 quarterly
installments

The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on
immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on atl
current and movable fixed assets, both present and
future, cocporzte guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare
Limited, the holding company.

Date of Loan - 27 April 2021

Charye date - 12 October 2020

MOE date - 7 May 2021

Charge date « 7 May 2021

HDFC Bank Term loan 4

Loan ofs - 2,012.14 lakhs (31
Warch 2024 : INR 2,305.36
lakhs)

Interest Rate - 8.4%
Repaymend - 38 quarterly
installments

The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on
immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all
cusrent and movabte fixed assets, both present and
future, corporate guarantee of Asier DM Healthcare
Limited, the holding company.

Date of Loan - 27 April 2021

Chasge date - 12 October 2020

MOE date - 7 May 2021

Charge date - 7 May 2021

HDFC Bank Term loan 3

Loan ofs - 11.56 lakhs (31
March 2024 . INR 52.44 lakhs)
[nterest raté - 8.4%

Repayment - 1% guarterly
installments

The term loan is secured by equitable mongage on
mmovable fixed assets, exclusive chacge on all
carrent and movable fixed assets, both present and
futurs, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare
Limited, the holding company.

Date of Loaa - 27 Aprsl 2021

Charge date - 12 Qctober 2020

MOE date - 7 May 2021

Charge date - 7 May 2021

HDFEC Bank Term loan &

Loan ofs - 449.93 lakhs (31
March 2024 : INR 337.75
fakhs)

Interest rate - 8.4%
Repayment - 91 monthly
installments

The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on
iimmovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all
current and movable fixed assets, both present and
future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healtheare
Limited, the holding company.

Date of Loan - 1 November
2023

Charge date - 1 Navemebr 2023

MOE date - 25 September 2023

Charge date - 25 September 2023

HDFC Bank Term loan 7

1oan ofs - 314.36 lakhs (31
March 2024 : INR 347.94
lakhs)

Interest Rate - 8.4%
Repayment terms- 83 monthly

linstallments

The terra loan is secared by exclusive charge on

imoveable fixed asset proposed to be purchased
using the proceeds of the loan.

Date of Loan - 26 February 2024

Charge date - 26 February 2024

There are no continuing defaults in the repayment of the principal loan and intezest amounts.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Noftes to the linancial statements for the yeas ended 31 Mavch 2025
All amounis tn INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

15 Teade payables
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
36.06 39.98

151

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises

Total eutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,23837 1,118.66
Total 1,274.43 1,158.64
All 1rade payabies are 'current’. The average credit penvod taken is 30-60 days.
The Company's exposure to curcency and tiquidity eisks related 1o trade payables is disclosed in Note 36.
Trade payables ageing schedut
Pariiculars Unbiled Dues Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year  1-2 years 2-3 years Move Than J years
Balance as at 31st March 2025
Micro, small and medium enterprises - 36.06 . - - 36.06
Others 315,03 1,224.97 1.96 647 497 1,238.37
Total 315.03 1,261.03 1,96 6.47 497 1,274.43
Balance a5 at 31st Mareh 2024
Micro, small and medium enterprises - 3998 - - - 39.98
Others 231.42 1,110.09 2.50 4.11 1.96 1,118.66
Toial 231.12 1,150.07 2.50 4.11 1.96 1,158.64

15.2 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on 1he information available with the Company are given below:

1

o

Farticulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier a1 the end of the year 36.06 39.98
- a.13

The iterest due on the principal remaining ocutstanding as at the ¢end of the year
The amoust of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during the yea -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - 020
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due snd payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 3.66
as above are actually paid to the small entesprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act

& 0.33
3.66

Note: The Ministry of Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 Aupust 2008 wiich recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in theit
comespondence with its customers the Enttepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Mernorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payebie to such

enterprises as at March 31, 20235 has Dbeen made in the financial statements based an information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if
any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Smell and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {*The MSMED Act’) i1s not expected 10 be material. The Company has

not received any chaim for interest fiom any supplier.

Qther financial liabilities

Particulars ATt i
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cuarrent

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 52.56 76.59

Dues to related party (refer Note 35) 8201 52.61

Dues to creditors for capital goods 338.02 35939

Total 472.59 488.59

* The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed in Note 14,

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk retated to the above fi ial liabilities is disclosed in Note 36.

Other liabilities

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2024

Current

Statutory dues payables 56.53 56.45

Total 56.83 56,45




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

18 Revenue from operations

8)]

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

1

2

2

2

b

0

1

-]

. For the year ended For the year ended
Farticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from hospital and medical services 13,989.14 11,619.00
Revenue from pharmacy 441.83 413.74
Other operating income 34.20 2329
Total 14,505.17 12,056.03
The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily revenue from courses conducted at the bospital, income from revenue
sharing agreements.

Category of Customers

" For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash (Including Cards/Unified Payments Interface/wallets/bank transfer/Cheques) 7,142.82 6,567.71
Credit {Including CoPay) 7,328.15 5,465.03
Revenue from Hospital and medical services and pharmacies 14,470,97 12,032.74
Others 34.20 23.29
Revenue from Operations 14,505.17 12,056.03
Nature of ireatment

. For the year cnded For the year ended
Enculyrs 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In- patient 12,226.61 10,244.46
Qut- patient 1,762.53 1,374.54
Total (Revenue from hospital and medical services) 13,98%.14 11,619.00
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:

Healthcare services {(Including other operating income)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the tenins of the 15,653.22 12,872.69

contract with customer)

Reduction in the form of discounts & disallowances {1,148.05) (816.66)

Revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss 14,505.17 12,056.03

Qther operating income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from medical courses 28.36 2313
Others 5.84 0.16
Total 34.20 23.29
Other income
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

Fixed deposits with banks 48.57 431
[wterest on income tax refund 59.41 11232
Other non operating income 15.62 42.63
Total 123.60) 159.26
Purchases of medicines and medical con Dbles

" For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Purchases of medicines and medical consumables 2,900.07 2.368.13
Tatal 2,900.07 2,368.13

*Includes purchases of medicines and imedica! consumables of INR 52.38 lakis (31 March 2024: TNR 3.53 1

NMote 35.

Changes in inventories

akhs) from related parties. Refer

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening stock 146.38 82.06
Closing stock (181.84) (146.38)
Total (35.46) (64.32)

Professional fees to consultant doctors

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Professional fees to consultant dogtors 3,106.38 2.371,68

Total 3,106.38 1,371.68




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless ofherwise stated

23

24

26

27

Laboratory outsourcing charges
. For the year ended For the year ended
]
Rarheylars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Laboratory outsourcing ¢harges* 425.24 756,96
Total 425.24 756.96

*Includes Laboratory outsourcing charges of TNR 1.62 lakhs (31 March 2024: INR 356.16 lakhs) from related parties. Refer Note 35.

Employee benefits expense

) For the year ended For the year ended
Eaztioulacs 31 March 2025 31 March 2624
Salaries and allowances 2,275.17 1,916.08
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer Note 34} 125.61 110.70
Staff welfare expense” 75.89 69.81
Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans {refer Note 34} 37.28 3691
Total 2,513.95 2,133.50

Alncludes staff welfare expense of INR 0.26 lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil) from related parties. Refer Note 35

Finance cost
Particulacs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on bank borrowings 291,73 359.79
Other borrowing costs 54.18 53.04
Total 345.91 412.83
Depreciation and amortisation
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer Note 4) 47970 439.56
Amortisation on intangible asscts (refer Note 5) 5.32 18.55
Total 485.02 458.11
Other expenses
Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Food and beverage 213.70 180.56
Power, water and fiel 448.65 378.72
Water charges 26.52 21.27
Housekeeping, security and others 591.13 537.67
Legal, professional and other consultancy 92.96 96.73
Auditors remuneration (refer Note 31) 13.00 12,30
Rent 74.43 58.89
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 272.09 236,22
Repairs and maintenance - building 18.04 22.04
Repairs and maintenance - others 139.95 15649
Advertising and promotional 45298 388.17
Rates and taxes 32.02 19.91
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets (refer Note 8) 1.00 -
Travelling and conveyance 23.61 2748
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 040 N
Net loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations 893 8.19
Corporate social responsibility (refer Note 27.1) 17.34 10.53
Insurance 24.80 20.66
Communication 26.26 23.67
Office expenses 8442 80.34
Donatien & charity 0.20 0.20
Bank Charges 26.97 27.55
Miscellaneous expenses 56.55 50.85
Total 2,645.95 2,367.44




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

27.1 Details of corporate social responsibility {CSR)

Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

- Amount required 1o be spent by the Company during the year 17.29 9.68

- Amount of expenditure mcurred 17.34 10.53

- Shortfall at the end of the year 5 .
- Total of previous year shortfalt 1 -

- Reason for shortfall Not Applicable Not Applicable
Promoting Healthcare Promoting Healthcare
including preventive including preventive
healtheare - Mobile healthcare - Mobile

- Nature of CSR activities medical van cainps medical van camps

through Aster Volunteers, through Aster Volunteers,
ergan donation awareness organ donation awareness
campaigns, campaigns.

- Details of related party transactions Not Applicable Mot Applicable

- Whether provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by enterimy into a

contractual obligation Not Applicable Not Appticable

- Amount spent during the year on:
Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
On purposes other than above 17.34 10.53

Excess of previcus year utilised - -
Total 17.34 10,53

CHARTERED |
accoumms) r




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

28 Income tax assets (net)
(a) Income tax assets/(liability)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 473.02 71697
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 473.02 716,97

of profit and loss

(b} Amount recognised in st

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax 441.01 192
Defered tax (including MAT credit entitlement) 161.80 19942
Tax expense for the year 602.81 201,34

{c) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax 1.28 0.50

Tax expense for the year 1.28 0.50

(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The standard rate of corperation tax applied to reported profit is 25.168% (2023-24: 25, 168%). The Company has opted for concessional tax rate regime effective from financial year

20206-21, while filing its income tax retunt.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit before tax 1,241,711 1,410.96
Statutory incoine fax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Tax expenses /(asset) 564.19 355.11
Other temporary differences 3421 (158.47)
Non deductible expenses / permanent differences 4.4] 278
Current tax for earlier years - 1.2
Income tax expense 602.81 20134

{e) Recognised deferred tax assets and Labilitics
{3) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Far the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Deferred tax asset

Trade receivables (loss allowances) 2.03 13.79
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss - 22839
Tatal deferred tax asset 9.03 242,18
Deferred tax liability

On account of fair valuation of land * 431.40 580.65
Net defined benefit asset - Gratuity 431 -
Unammortised Borzowing Cost .32 -
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act, 607.03 544.05
Total deferred tax liability 1,032.06 1,124.70
Deferred tax asset / (Liability) (net} (1,043.03) (882.52)

* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation recognised based on tax rates applicable to the long-term capital gains.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a tegaliy enforceable right to set off curment tax assets and current tax labilities related to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on & net basis. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising out of tax

losses {unabsorbed depreciation) to the extent of net deferred tax liability on account of taxable temporary differences.




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

28 Income tax assets (net)

(ii) Movement in temporary differences

; Asat R L e Asat
Particulars i April 2024 Recognised in profit and loss  Recognised in OCI 31 March 2025
Trade receivables (loss allowances) 13.79 (4.76) - 2.03
Unabsorbed depreciation and business Joss 228.39 (228.39) - -
On account of fair vafuation land * (580.65) 149.25 - {431.40)
Met defined benefit asset - Gratuity - (5.5 1.28 4.31)
Unammortised Borrowing Cost - (9.32) - {9.32)
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Income Tax Act,
1961 over depreciation under Companies Act (344.65) (62.98) B (607.03)
Total (882.52) {161.30) 1.28 (1,043.03)

* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation is recognised based on tax rates applicable te the long-term capital pains.

Movement in temporary differcnces

Particulars 1 Apriﬁzsﬂgg Recognised in profit and loss  Recognised in QCI 31 MarchA}.‘SO;!ti
MAT credit entitlement
Trade receivables (loss allowances) 25.31 (11.52) - 13.79
Provision for employee berefits 3.78 (4.28) 0.50 -
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 439,14 (210.75) - 228.39
On account of fair valuation land * (683.60) 102.95 - (580.65)
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and
equipment under Income Tax Act, 1961 over {468.23) (75.82) - {544.05)
depreciation under Companies Act
Total (683.60) {199.42) 0.50 (882.52)

(iii) Tax losses carried forward

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 Expiry date 31 March 2024 Expiry date
Brought forward losses - R
Brought forward depreciation - Infinite period 907.48 Infinite period
Total tax losses carried forward N $07.48

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the above items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available agamst which the Company can use the
benefits. The above is arrived basis the balances as on date. The deductible temporary difference do not expire under the current tax legislation.
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

29

30

31

32

33

Contingent liabilitics and commitments

For the year ended  For the year ended

LRl 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contingent liabilities

Medical claims against the Company (refer Note a) 42.78 -
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis (refer Note d) 35.36 36.85
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) 113.80 69.55

and nat provided for (refer note ¢}

a. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where pravisions are required and
disclosed as contingent liability where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to
have a materially adverse effect on its financial position. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent
liabilitics,

b. On 28th February 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has defivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in
determining the components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by establishments, Basis this
judgment, the Company has re-computed its liability towards FF from the month of March 2619 and has paid PF as per Supreme Court
judgement. In respect of the earlier periods/years, the Company has been legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the
application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice, the Management believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably
measure the provision required, if any, and accordingly, no provision has been made towards the sante. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be
made to the books as more clarity emerges on this subject,

¢. The Company does not have any long-term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/contracts, including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foresceable losses.

d.The company has reccived Show Cause Notice (SCN) from Assistant commissioner of State Tax where department alleged of excess ITC
claimed and ineligible ITC availment and issue the demand order amounting to INR 35.36 Lakhs. The company has responded against the said
SCN.

Earnings per share

A. Basic earnings per sharc
The calculation of profit attributable to equity sharc holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpase of basic
eamings per share calculations are as follows:

i} Net profit attributable to equity share holders (basic)

For the year cnded  For the year ended

Barticulars 31 March 2025 31 Miarch 2024
Net profit for the year, attributable to the equity share holders 1,638.90 1,209.62
i) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance (refer Note 12) 41.40 41,40
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each for the year 41.40 41.40
Earnings per share, basic 39.59 29.22

B. Diluted earnings per share
The Company does not have any outstanding difutive instruments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Hence, the Basic and Diluted EPS
are the same,

Payment to auditors (net of goods and services tax)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

For statutory audit {refer Note 27) 13.00 12.30

Total 13.00 12.30

Leases

The Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its office premises and otherwise which are renewable at the oplion of both the
lessor and lessee. These are shorl term leases as per Ind AS 116, Total rental cxpenses under such leases for the period ended 31 March 2025
amounted to INR 74.43 lakhs (for the year ended 31 March 2024: INR 58.89 lakhs)

Segmental reporting
Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108™) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about
aperating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “management
approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Members of Board of the Company have been identified as the CODM as defined by Ind AS 108
"Operating Segments". The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company's sole operating
segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services®. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other
than those already provided in the financial statements.

The Company’s busingss primarily fulls within a single geographical segment, namely India.
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All amounts en INR takhs, unless otherwise stated

34 Employee benefits

34.1 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratu
of service is entitled to specific benefit. The granugy bencfit provides for
termination of emplayment of an amount equivalent 1o 15 7 3¢ days” satary p
makes contributions to LIC of India. Liabilities with regard to the Grawu

342

343

34,4

ayable for each completed year of service. The

ty Act, 1972 (*Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five years

recogmized subject to a maximum timit of TNR 20,00,000, as prescribed under the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972,

Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the statu:

2 lump sum payment to vested employees at reticement, death while 1n employment or on
gratuity plan 1s a funded plan and the Company
ty Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date. The gratuity ebligation is

5 of the gratuity plan and the amounts recogmsed in the Company’s financial statements as at balance

sheet date:

Particulars For the year erded For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present value of defined benefit abligation 508 68 446,67

Present value of plan assets 525.81 455.62

Net asset recognised {17.13) (8.95)

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Pacticulars ) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance as at beginning of the year 446.67 380.71
Benefit paid {13.32) (13.27);
Current service cost 3896 35.82
Interest cost 3127 28123
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recogrised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions - -
- changes in financial assumptions 21.54 6.39
- experience adjustments (16.44) (2.60)
Transfer In/ (Out) - i1.44
Balance as at the end of the year 508.68 446.67|
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance a5 at beginning of the year at fair value 45562 365.71
Contributions paid mto the plan 5056 74.27
Benefits paid (13.32) (13.27)
Interest income on plan assets 32.95 2714
Return on plan asset recognised in other comprehensive income - 177
Balance as at the end of the year 525.81 455.62
[Met defined benefit obligation asset | (17.13)] (3.95)

{i) Exg recopnised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Current service cost 38.96 35.82
Interest cost 31.27 2823
Interest income {3295) {27.14}
Ned gratuity cost 37.28 3691

ii) Remeasurenents recognised in other comprehensive inconte

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024,

Plan asset comprises of the following:

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 5.10 3.74
Returr on plan asset excluding interest income g (1.77),
R remeats recognised in other comprehensive inconte 5.10 1.97
Pian asset

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year enced
31 March 2024

Insurance policy

52581

455.62

CHARTERED
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the finzncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

34.5 Actuarial valuation

The present value of the defined benefit oblig
defined benefit plan typically exposes the Com

ation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. The
pany to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investrent risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability denominated in Indian Rupee is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For other
defined berefit plans, the discount rate 15 determined by reference to high quality corporate bond vields when there
is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan defictt. Currently
the plan in [ndia 1s investments m government securities and other debt instruments.

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the bond imtesest rate wiil increase the plan liability

Longevity risk The present vatue of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants both during and afler their employment. An increase m the life expectancy of the plan
paritcipants will increase the phan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the fulure sataries of plan

participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

(i} Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

Attrition rate

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Driscount rate 6.40% 7.20%
Future salary growth 7.00% 7.00%

30.00% paatyounger| 30.00% p.a at younger
ages reducing to 5.00% | ages reducing to 3.00%

p.a at older ages

Pp.a at older ages]

Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 (Ult)] TALM 201214 (UlL)
The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended 31 Macch 2025 and year ended 31 March 2024 as set out below-
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 7 years 7 years

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the indian Assured Lives Mortality (LALM).
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government

securities yield.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian tupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plan

(1i) Scasitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit abligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rate. Reasonably possible
changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions holding other assumptions constant would have affected the defined benefit cbligation by the amounts

shown below:

Particulars Far the year ended 31 March 2035
Increase Decrease

Discount rate {1% movement) 3433 39.42

Future salary growth (i% movement} 38.80 3445

Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 1.88 2.05
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2024
Increase Decrease
[¥iseount rate (1% movement) 2043 33.74
Future salary growth (1% movement} 33.41 29.69
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 0.43 0.43

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as is
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assurnptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivify analy:
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting peried, which is the same as th
obligation liability recogmsed in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the

34.6 Defined contribution plan

is unlikely that the changes in assumptions
sis, the present value of the defined benefit
at applied in calculating the defined benefit
sensitivity analysis from prior years

Particalars

For the year eniled
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2424

Contribution ic provident fund
Labour Welfare Fund
Components recopnised in the statement of profit and loss

124.98
0.65
125.61

110.40
0.30
110.70




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All armounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

35 Related parties
35.1 Related party relationships
1) Namcs of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:;

(a} Holding company

(b) Fellow Subsidiary

I1) Other related parties with whom the entity had transactions during the current andjor previous year

(a) Key managerial personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Dr, Ulhas Bhalchandra Damale
Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navare
Dr. Charusheela Damale
¥, Sujata Navare
Mr. Moolakkadath Salahuddin
Mr. Azhumutathit Abdulrahiman Salim
Mr. Wilson Joseph Thadathil

35.2 Related party transactions:
The Comparny has entered inta the following transactions with rclated partics

Aster DM Heafthcare Limited, India

Hindustan Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Aster Clinical Lab LLP
DM Med City Hospitals {India) Private Limited

Managing director

Whole time director

Wife of managing director
Wite of whole time director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director

Nature of transaction
SL No.

Related pa

transactions

31 March 2025

For the year ended|

For the year ended
31 March 2024

1 |Managerial remuneration

Dr. Ulhas Bhalchandra Damale 42.00 39.00
Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navarc 9.00 7.50
2 |Short term employee benefits
Dir. Ulhas Bhalchandra Damale 28.22 2644
Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navarc 186.26 172.57
Dr. Charusheela Damale 26.40 47.19
Dr. Sujata Navare 10.80 10,30
3 |Aster DM Healthcare Limited
Guarantec commission paid 3364 3294
Lab outsourcing charges 1.62 170.00
Reimbursement of expendinire 202.07 221.30
4  |Hindustan Pharma Distributors Pvt Ltd
Purchase of medicines and drugs 52.38 3.53
5 JAster Clinical Lab LLP
Laboratory eutsourcing charges - 186.16
6 [DM Med City Hospitals {Indis) Private Limited
Staff Welfare cxpenses 0.26 -
35.3 Balance reccivable / {payable} as at the year end
5L No.|Particilars As at] As at|

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1 |Salaries and professional fee

Dr. Ulbas Bhalchandra Damale (1.35) (1.40)

Drr. Shailendra Morcshwar Navare (5.85) (6.10)

Dr. Charusheela Damale (1.30) (1.95)

Dr. Sujata Navare (0.63) (0.63)
2 |Other financial Habilities

Dues to Holding Cempany - Aster DM Healthcare Limited (82.01) (59.63)

Dues to Holding Company - Hindustan Pharma Distributors Pvt Lud - (3.53)

Bues from Fellow Subsidiary - Aster Clinical Lab LLP 2726 38.25
3 |Guarantee received

Aster DM Healthcare Limited 7,250.00 7,250.00
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FRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, untess otherwise stated

36 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management {conlinued)
B Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it 1o a variety of financial rigks:
a) Credit Risk
b) Liquidity risk
<) Market risk

i) Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overafl responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
The Company's audit committee how monitars compli with the nsk nent policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framewaork in relation to the nisks faced by the Company. The committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit Internal audit underiakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee

ii} Credit risk
Credit tisk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under & financial instrument or customer contract, teading 1o financial loss, The credit risk arises principally
from its operating activities (primanly trade reccivables) and from its mvesting actwvities, including deposits with banks and financizl institutions and cther financial instruments

Credit nsk is controlled by analysing credit limits sad creditwarthingss of customers on a contimous basis to whom credit has been granted afier obtaining necessary approvals for
oredit. The callection from the trade receivables are monitared on a continuous basis by the receivables team

The Company nlways measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors current financial position, adjusted for fhctors that are specific 10 the debtors,

general, econcmic conditions of the industry in which the deblors operate, and an assessment ofboth the current as well as forecast direction of conditions at the reperting date,

The maximum exposure ta the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivebles amounting to INR 764,03 lakhs (31 March 2024 : INR 687.40 lakhs) (refer Note
8) and unbilled receivables amounting to INR 115,10 lakhs (31 March 2024 - INR 91,72 latehs) (refer Note 10)

The movement in lifetime ECL in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Allowance for credit loss As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning (54.78) (106.58)
Impairment loss recognised (1.00) -
Amount written off’ 19.89 45.80
Balance at the end {35.89) (54.78)

No single customer accoursed for more than 1% of the revenue as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Invesiments primarily include investment in shares,

iil) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficufly in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial assst. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for management of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as
far as possible, that it will alwzys have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unsceptable losses or
risking dzmage to the Company's reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial linbilities as of 31 March 2025

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Trade payables 1,274.43 - 1,274.43
Dorrpwings 652.43 2,349.73 3,002.16
Other financial liabilities 472.50 - 472.59
Tatal 2,399.45 2.349.73 4,749.18
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significent financial liabilities as of 31 March 2024

Particulars Less than T year More than 1 yesr Total
Trade payables 1,158.64 - 1,158.64
Borrowings 1,155.49 2,859.46 4,014.95
Other financial liabilities 488.5% - 483.59
Total 2,802,72 2,859.46 5,662.13
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PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

36 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

The Company is usmg the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant

fmancial assets as of 31 March 2025:

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 vear Total

Cash and Cash equivalents 672.43 - 672.43
Trade receivables 764.03 - 762.03
Investments - 45.60 45.60
Qther financial assets 188.59 958.41 1,147.00
Tatal 1,625.05 1,004,058 2,629.06

financial assets as of 31 March 2024:

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Cash and Cash equivalents 543.30 - 543.30
Other bank balances - - -
Trade receivables 687.40 - 587.40
Investments - 0.10 .10
Other financial assets 12242 120.72 243.14
Total 1,353.12 120.82 1,473.94

Financial assets of INR 2,629.06 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (INR 1,473.94 lakhs &s at 3t March 2024} carried at amortised cost and [NR. 45.50 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (Nil as
at 31 March 2024} is carried at FVTPL is in the form of cash and cash equivalents, deposits, etc. where the Company has assessed the counterpanty credit risk. Trade receivables
of INR 764.03 akhs as at 31 March, 2025 (INR. 687.40 lakhs as at 3] March 2024} carried at amortised cost and is valued consideting provision for allowance using expected

credit loss method (if any).

iv) Market risk

Market risk is tie risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate beca

rates and equaty pnces.

use of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, imerest

{n) TInterest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates, The Company's significant interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate on the Company’s financial instruments is based on
market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an angoing basis. The risk is managed by the Company maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and
floating rate borrowings.
The exposure of the Company’s barrowing 1o interest rate changes gt the end of the reporting period are as follows.
Financial liabilities (bank borrowings) Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities 1,002.16 4,014.95
Sensitivity
Particulars Impact on profit or (loss) Impact on equily, net of tax
As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1% increase in MCLR rate (40.15) (30.02) (40.15)
1% decrease in MCLR rate 40.15 3002 40.15
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A one per cent increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally o key management perscnnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The Company's
sensitivity to interest rates has increased in the current year due to the additional variable rate long term borrewings taken during the year,
{b) Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to price risks araising from investments in equity share. The Company's investment are help strategically rather than for tradig purpase.

|




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR takhs, unless otherwise stated

37 Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capial base so a3 to maintain «

monitors captial on the bass of return ¢n capital employed as weli as the debt to total equity ratio.
d short-teem borrowings Total equity compnise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.
The capntal structure as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was as follows

For the puipose of debt to total equuty ratio, debt considered 13 bong-

11T an:

mvestor, creditor and marke: confidence and to sustain future deve

elopment of the business. Management

Particulars pslat =
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total equity atiributable to the equity sharcholders of the Company 8,169,692 6,564.84
As & percentage of iotal capital 73% 68%
Total borrowings 3,002,146 4,014.95
As a percentage of {ota] capital 27% 41%
Total capitnl {equity and borrowings) £1,202.08 9,696.11

38 Financial ratios

Ratio

Methodology

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the ycar ended Percentage Change  Explanation il variance exceeds

31 March 2024

25%

a} Current ratio

b) Debt-equity ratio
©} Drebt service coverage ratio
d) Return on equity

&) Inventory turnover ratio
1) Trade receivables turnover ratio

¢} Trade payables turnover ratio
h) Net capital turnover ratio

1} Net profit ratio
1) Return on capital employed

k) Return on investment

Notes:

Cureent assets/ Current Liabilities

Total debt/ Shareholder's equity

Eamings available for debt service/
Debt service

Net profit  after
sharchalder's equity
Cost of goods sold/ Average inventory
Revenue from operations/ Average
aceounts receivables

Total purchases/ Average trade payables

laxes/ Average

Net sales/ Working capital

Net prefit/ Net sales

Earnings before interest and taxes/

Capital employed

Net gain on sale of investments and net

fair value gain over average investments

Total debt = Borrowings - Cash & cash equivalents - Other bank balances

Earnings available for debt service = Net profit before taxes + Non-cash o

0.78

028
136
22.20%

14,59
1999

238
{26.56)

1%
23%

Not Applicable

perating expenses like de

as loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, fair valuation of put options)
Debt service = Interest + Prncipal repayments

Net profit = Net profit afler tax

Capital employed = Tangible net worth + Total debt

Earnings before interest and taxes =

Sf CHARTERED J-'
S\ ACCOUNTANTS |7

=

0355

053
L3
2029%

1492
2267

222
©39)

19%
i7%

Not Applicable

Net profit before taxes - Other income + Interest + Other adjustments {such as loss o sale of praperty,

41%

-46%
38%
P

3%
-12%

8%
184%

13%
4%

Not Applicable

Due to increase in trade reciavbles
and decrease tn borrowings

Due to decrease in borrowings
and increase in profit for the year
Due to increase ir profits and
decrease in debt

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applieable

Not Applicable

Due to increase m Revenue from
Operations and working capital
Not Applicable

Due to increase in profit for the
year

Not Applicable

preciation and amortisations - Other income + Interess + Other adjustments (such

plant and equipment)




PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR Jakhs, unless otherwise stated

39 Additional disclosures
a) The Company does not have any Berami property, where any proceeding has been inittated or pending agzinst the Company for holding any Benam property during and as at 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024 (the reporting year').

b) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the reporting year.

©) There are no iransactions and balances with companies which have been removed from the Register of Companies [struck off compames] during and as at the reporting year.

d) The Company has not fraded / invested in Crypta currency during the reporting year,

¢) The Company docs not have any charges or satisfction which 1 yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period as a1 the reporiing year

f) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds duning the reporting penods to ary other person(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entines (Intermediaries) with the
und ding that the Int diary shall-

(i) Dircetly or indirectiy lend o7 nvest in other persons or enbilies dentified in any manrer whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i} provide any guarantee, security of the like 1o or on behaff of the Ultumate Beneficiaries.

8} The Company has not recerved any fund during the reporting perieds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded 1 writing or otherwise) thal the Company shall:
(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 1n any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(¢) provide any guarantee, secunity or the like on behalf of the Ulumate Beneficiaries.

h} The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded n the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as mncome during the reporting periods in the tax
assessmends under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant proviszons of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

i) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans fo premoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either
severally or jointly with any other person that are:
(i} repayable on demand; or
(i} without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

J} The Company is not declared as will ful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortum thereof or other lender i accordance
with the guidelines on willfiul defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India

k) The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Restriclion on number of Layers) Ruies, 2017.

1) As per the requirement of the rue 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company uses only such accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account that have &
feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction creating an edit log of each change made in the baoks of account. This feature of recording the sudit trail has operated
throughout the year and was not tampered with duning the year.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for recorg retention.

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN' URS11OPNI996PLC 104292

Sroom /e

Dr. Uthas Bhalchandra Damale Dr. Shailendra Moreshwar Navare
Managing Director Whole-time Direcior

DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421

Kolkapur Kolhapur

Date: 16 May 2025 Date: 16 May 2025



